

9 References

- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). *Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets*. Washington, D.C.: American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), 2004. Print. [AASHTO 2004]
- Andrews, R., and R. Righter. *Colorado Birds*. Denver, CO: Denver Museum of Natural History, 1992. Print.
- Arkansas Valley Fair. *Historic Information about the Arkansas Valley Fair*. Web. 8 Dec. 2009. <<http://www.arkvalleyfair.com/>>.
- ASTM International. *Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process*. West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania: ASTM International, 2005. Print.
- Baker, C. Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). Rocky Ford Field Office. Consultation about the carrying capacity of ranch lands for livestock grazing. Feb. 2009.
- Bent County. Resolution 2005-14. 20 Jun. 2005.
- Bent County Assessor. Property records for buildings within the boundaries of Las Animas that are 45 years of age or older. Bent County, CO: Bent County Assessor. File search completed Nov. 2006.
- Black, T. Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). Lamar area wildlife manager. Consultation regarding Colorado Division of Wildlife newly established (interim) state wildlife areas. 20 Apr. 2009. [Black 2009]
- Black, T. (Lamar area wildlife manager), M. Smith (conservation biologist), and B. Will (CDOW). Consultation regarding state wildlife areas in the project area. 5 Nov. 2007.
- Black & Veatch, CDM, Farnsworth Group, Merrick & Company, MWH. *Arkansas Valley Conduit Pre-National Environmental Policy Act State and Tribal Assistance Grant Report*. Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District, May 2010. Print
- Bottorff, R.L. "Cottonwood Habitat for Birds in Colorado." *American Birds* 28 (1974): 975-979. Print.
- Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA). *Jobs Information*. Web. 2007. <<http://www.bea.gov/regional/reis/default.cfm#step3>>.
- Bureau of Land Management (BLM). *Potential Fossil Yield Classification (PFYC) System for Paleontological Resources on Public Lands. Instruction Memorandum No. 2008-009*. Washington, D.C.: Department of the Interior, 2007. Print.
- Bureau of Land Management (BLM). *Guidance for Implementation of Potential Fossil Yield Classification (PFYC) System. Instruction Memorandum No. 2008-009*. Washington, D.C.: Department of the Interior, 2008. Print.
- Burt, W.H., and R.P. Grossenheider. *A Field Guide to Mammals. Peterson Field Guides*. New York: Houghton Mifflin Company, 1980. Print.



- Carroll, C. *Coal Production, Distribution, and Electric Generation Map of Colorado*. Denver, CO: Colorado Geological Survey (CGS), 2005. Web. May 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us>>.
- Carter, Carrol Joe, and Steven F. Mehls. *Colorado Southern Frontier Historical Context*. Denver, CO: Colorado Historical Society, Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation, 1984. Print. [Carter 1984]
- Chapman, S., et al. *Ecoregions of Colorado*. Reston, VA: U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 2006. Print.
- Christopherson, Robert W. *Geosystems: An Introduction to Physical Geography*. 7th ed. Upper Saddle River, New Jersey: Prentice Hall, 2008. Print.
- Chronic, H. and F. Williams. *Roadside Geology of Colorado*. Missoula, MT: Mountain Press, 2007. Print.
- City of La Junta. Resolution R-14-2005. 16 May 2005.
- City of La Junta. Resolution R-7-2007. 16 Jan. 2007.
- City of Las Animas. Resolution 14-05. 12 Jul. 2005.
- City of Rocky Ford. Resolution 11 (2005 series). 14 Jun. 2005.
- Colorado Department of Agriculture. Ag Facts (CO Ag Facts). *Value of Agricultural Products Sold by County*. 2002. Web. Feb. 2006. <<http://www.ag.state.co.us/mkt/AgStatsMap.pdf>>.
- Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA), State Demography Office. *Historical Census Data*. Web. Dec. 2006. <http://www.dola.state.co.us/demog_webapps/population_census>.
- Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). *Jobs Information*. Web. 2007. <http://www.dola.colorado.gov/demog_webapps/jobs_sector_naics>.
- Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). *Colorado Economic and Demographic Information System*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). Web. 28 Jul. 2009. <<http://www.dola.state.co.us/is/cedishom.htm>>.
- Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). *Population Estimates by County and Municipality (2000-2008)*. Web. Feb. 2010. <http://www.dola.state.co.us/dlg/demog/pop_totals.html>.
- Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). Colorado Economic and Demographic Information System (CEDIS). *Colorado Jobs by Sector in 2011—NAICS Based (2001 to Current)*. 2011. Web. 16 Oct. 2013. <https://dola.colorado.gov/demog_webapps/jsParameters.jsf?sic=F>.
- Colorado Department of Natural Resources (DNR). *Major Trans-Basin Divisions in Colorado*. Sep. 2000. Web. 15 Apr. 2010. <http://sciencepolicy.colorado.edu/admin/publication_files/resource-647-wwa_map_3.pdf>.
- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). Air Pollution Control Division. *PM₁₀ Maintenance Plan for Lamar, Colorado*. Denver, CO; CDPHE, Nov. 2001. Print.
- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). *Hospitals in Colorado*. Web. 10 Oct. 2006. <<http://www.cdphe.state.co.us/hf/static/hospital.htm>>.

- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). Water Quality Control Commission. *Colorado's Monitoring and Evaluation List (Regulation #94)*. Denver, CO: CDPHE, 30 Apr. 2008. Web. 15 Apr. 2010. <<http://www.cdphe.state.co.us/regulations/wqccregs/100294wqccmonitoringevaluationlist.pdf>>. [CDPHE 2008a]
- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). Water Quality Control Division. *Status of Water Quality in Colorado—2008: The Update to the 2002, 2004, and 2006 305(b) Reports*. Denver, CO: CDPHE, Apr. 2008. Web. May 2009. <<http://www.cdphe.state.co.us/op/wqcc/Resources/wqresdoc.html>>. [CDPHE 2008b]
- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). Water Quality Control Commission. *Section 303(d) List: Water-Quality-Limited Segments Requiring Total Daily Maximum Loads (Regulation #93)*. Denver, CO: CDPHE, 9 Mar. 2010. Web. Apr. 2010. <<http://www.cdphe.state.co.us/regulations/wqccregs/>>.
- Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE). Air Pollution Control Division. *PM₁₀ Maintenance Plan for Lamar, Colorado*. Denver, CO: CDPHE, Nov. 2012.
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). Memorandum of Understanding. *Shortgrass Prairie Initiative*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Transportation, 2001. Print.
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). Notes from bus tour conducted in Fowler, Colorado, as part of *A Corridor Selection Study: A Plan for US 50*. Colorado Springs, CO: CDOT Region 2, 2 May 2002. Print. [CDOT 2002b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *A Corridor Selection Study: A Plan for US 50*. Colorado Springs, CO: CDOT Region 2, Sep. 2003. Print. [CDOT 2003a]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Existing Conditions Report, Project No. NH 0504-037*. Denver, CO: CDOT, May 2003. Print. [CDOT 2003b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *SH 50B Corridor Safety Study: MP 316–467.58*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Transportation, Jan. 2003. Print. [CDOT 2003c]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Accident Data 1996–2004*. Denver, CO: CDOT, 4 Dec. 2006. Print. [CDOT 2004a]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Land Ownership in Colorado*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.2. Denver, CO: CDOT, 31 Dec. 2004. Web. 20 Sep. 2005. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/App_DTD_DataAccess/GeoData/index.cfm?fuseaction=GeoDataMain&MenuType=GeoData>. [CDOT 2004b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *US 50 Tier 1 EIS Community Workshops Report*. Colorado Springs, CO: CDOT Region 2, Aug. 2006. Print. [CDOT 2006b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Colorado Hazardous and Nuclear Materials Route Restrictions*. 2007. Web. 7 Aug. 2009. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/App_DTD_DataAccess/Downloads/StatewideMaps/HazMatFront.pdf>.
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Straight Line Diagram of SH050B from MP 316 to MP 468*. Web. 4 Jun. 2007. <<http://dtdeexternal.dot.state.co.us/sld/>>. [CDOT 2007a]

- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *National Environmental Policy Act Manual*. Denver, CO: CDOT, Dec. 2008. Web. Apr. 2010. <<http://www.coloradodot.info/programs/environmental/nepa-program/nepa-manual>>. [CDOT 2008b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Roadway Statistics: Daily Vehicle Miles Traveled by County in Colorado*. 2008. Web. Jun. 2010. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/app_DTD_DataAccess/Statistics/dsp_folder/Roadway/2008/2008DVMTbyCounty.htm>. [CDOT 2008c]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Documented Hazardous Material Sites in Colorado*. 2009. Acquired from CDOT, Craig Clark, Hazardous Materials Specialist, on October 29, 2009. [CDOT 2009a]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Roadkill Database*. 2009. Provided by Jeff Peterson, CDOT Wildlife Program Manager, Apr. 2010. [CDOT 2009b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Future Traffic Volumes of SH050B from MP 315 to MP 467*. Web. 2 Feb. 2010. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/App_DTD_DataAccess/Traffic/index.cfm?fuseaction=TrafficMain&MenuType=Traffic>. [CDOT 2010a]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Traffic Data for I-25 from MP 200 to MP 214 (Denver)*. Web. 15 Feb. 2010. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/App_DTD_DataAccess/Traffic/index.cfm?fuseaction=TrafficMain&MenuType=Traffic>. [CDOT 2010c]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Traffic Information for SH050B from MP 315 to MP 467*. Web. 2 Feb. 2010. <http://www.dot.state.co.us/App_DTD_DataAccess/Traffic/index.cfm?fuseaction=TrafficMain&MenuType=Traffic>. [CDOT 2010d]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Online Transportation Information System (OTIS) Data for 2012*. Web. Mar. 2014. <<http://dtdapps.coloradodot.info/otis>>. [CDOT 2012]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). CDOT Online Transportation Information System (OTIS). *Noxious Weed Data*. Web. Oct. 2013. <<http://dtdapps.coloradodot.info/noxiousweeds/>>.
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Final Environmental Impact Statement and Section 4(f) Evaluation for Interstate 25 Improvements through Pueblo*. Denver, CO: CDOT, Sep. 2013. Print. [CDOT 2013a]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Noise and Abatement Guidelines*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Transportation, 8 Feb. 2013. Print. [CDOT 2013b]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *National Environmental Policy Act Manual. Version 3*. Denver, CO: CDOT, 2013. Print. (CDOT 2013c).
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *2040 Statewide Transportation Plan*. 19 Mar. 2015. Web. Nov. 2015. <<http://coloradotransportationmatters.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/CDOT-SWP-Executive-Summary-2015-07-01.pdf>>. [CDOT 2015]
- Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). *Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, Fiscal Years 2016–2019*. May 2015. Web. <<https://www.codot.gov/business/budget/statewide-transportation-improvement-program-stip-reports-information/current-stip-reports->

- information/FINAL%20FY%202016-2019%20STIP%20-%20Adopted%20May%2021%202015.pdf/view>. [CDOT 2015a]
- Colorado Division of Reclamation, Mining, and Safety (CDRMS). *Permitted Mines in Colorado*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.3. 1 Dec. 2009. Web. May 2010. <<http://mining.state.co.us/GIS%20Data.htm>>.
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *State Wildlife Area (SWA) Boundaries*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.0. 17 Apr. 2003. Print. [CDOW 2003a]
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW) and Colorado Grassland Species Working Group. *Conservation Plan for Grassland Species in Colorado*. Denver, CO: Colorado Division of Wildlife, Nov. 2003. Print. [CDOW 2003b]
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Riparian Mapping Methodology*. 2004. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://ndis1.nrel.colostate.edu/riparian/Methods.htm>>.
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Fisheries Data for Streams along US 50 from 1979 to 2005*. Extracted from the fisheries database by Jim Ramsay (CDOW Area 12 aquatic biologist). Data extracted January 2007. [CDOW 2005]
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Habitat and Wildlife Issues along US 50 in Southeastern Colorado*. Meeting notes from T. Black (CDOW Area 12 wildlife manager), M. Smith (CDOW Area 12 habitat biologist), and R. McEldowney (Post, Buckley, Schuh, and Jernigan, Inc., ecologist). 24 Oct. 2006. Print.
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Colorado State Wildlife Areas (SWA)*. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://wildlife.state.co.us/Apps.swa/view.asp>>. [CDOW 2007]
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Colorado Birding Trails on the Eastern Plains*. Web. 12 Dec. 2009. <<http://www.coloradobirdingtrail.com/trails/eastern-plains.php>>. [CDOW 2009a]
- Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). *Colorado State Wildlife Areas (SWA)*. Web. Jul. 2009. <<http://wildlife.state.co.us/LandWater/StateWildlifeAreas/>>. [CDOW 2009b]
- Colorado Economic and Demographic Information System (CEDIS). *Economic Information from the 2000 U.S. Census*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Local Affairs. 2000. Web. 6 Dec. 2006. <<http://www.dola.state.co.us/is/cedishom.htm>>.
- Colorado Geological Survey (CGS). Colorado Natural Hazards Mitigation Council, Earthquake Subcommittee. *Colorado Earthquake Information*. 15 Nov. 1999. Web. May 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us>>.
- Colorado Geological Survey (CGS). *Ground Water Atlas of Colorado*. Denver, CO: Colorado geological Survey, 2003. Web. 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us/wateratlas/>>.
- Colorado Geological Survey (CGS). *Colorado Coal Fact Sheet*. Denver, CO: Colorado Geological Survey (CGS), 2007. Web. May 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us>>.
- Colorado Geological Survey (CGS). *Colorado Minerals Fact Sheet*. Denver, CO: Colorado Geological Survey (CGS), 2008. Web. May 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us>>.



- Colorado Office of Economic Development and International Trade (OEDIT). *Colorado Enhanced Rural Enterprise Zone Program Fact Sheet*. Web. 12 Jul. 2009. <<http://www.colorado.gov/cs/Satellite/OEDIT/OEDIT/1167928191402>>. [OEDIT 2009a]
- Colorado Office of Economic Development and International Trade (OEDIT). *Colorado Enterprise Zone Program Fact Sheet*. Web. 12 Jul. 2009. <<http://www.colorado.gov/cs/Satellite/OEDIT/OEDIT/1167928191402>>. [OEDIT 2009b]
- Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). *Oil and Gas Facility, Well, and Permit Locations in Colorado*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.1. Denver, CO: Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC), 14 May 2010. Web. May 2010. <<http://cogcc.state.co.us/>>. [COGCC 2010a]
- Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). *Oil and Gas Well Database*. Denver, CO: Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). Web. 14 May 2010. <<http://cogcc.state.co.us/>>. [COGCC 2010b]
- Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). *GIS Online Map*. Denver, CO: Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (COGCC). Web. Sep. 2013. <<http://cogcc.state.co.us/>>.
- Colorado Preservation, Inc. (CPI). *Colorado's Most Endangered Places Program: Summary Of 2009 Endangered Places*. Denver, CO: Colorado Preservation, Inc., 2009. Print.
- Colorado State Land Board. *About the State Land Board*. Web. 12 Jan. 2010. <<http://trustlands.state.co.us/NewsandMedia/Pages/AbouttheSLB.aspx>>.
- Colorado State Parks. *Directions to John Martin Reservoir State Park*. Web. 10 Apr. 2007. <<http://parks.state.co.us/Parks/JohnMartinReservoir/MapsandDirections/>>.
- Colorado State Parks. *Colorado Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan*. Denver, CO: Colorado State Parks, 2008. Web. Dec. 2009. <<http://parks.state.co.us/Trails/LWCF/SCORPplan/>>.
- Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB). *Arkansas River Basin Statewide Water Supply Initiative Fact Sheet*. Denver, CO: Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB), Feb. 2006. <<http://cwcb.state.co.us/Home/RiverBasinFacts/>>. [CWCB 2006a]
- Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB). *Tamarisk Inventory for the Colorado, Arkansas, and Purgatoire Rivers*. Presented by the Tamarisk Coalition, 25 Jan. 2006. [CWCB 2006b]
- Denver Museum of Nature and Science. *Generalized Fossil Locations Within the U.S. Highway 50 Corridor from Pueblo to the Colorado-Kansas State Line Recorded by the Denver Museum of Nature and Science*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.2. Colorado Springs, CO: URS Corporation, 5 Mar. 2002.
- Energy Information Administration (EIA). *International Energy Outlook*. May 2007. Web. Jul. 2009. <[http://tonto.eia.doe.gov/ftproot/forecasting/0484\(2007\).pdf](http://tonto.eia.doe.gov/ftproot/forecasting/0484(2007).pdf)>.
- Environment Colorado Research and Policy Center. *Losing Ground: Colorado's Vanishing Agricultural Landscape*. Denver, CO: Environment Colorado, Mar. 2006. Web. 2008. <http://www.environmentcolorado.org/uploads/Ch/IV/ChIVMUHVcqkMltQLgaPg5g/Losing_Ground.pdf>.

- Fankhauser, T. Colorado Cattleman's Association. Consultation about the carrying capacity of ranch lands for livestock grazing. Feb. 2009.
- Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). *Flood Zones*. Web. Sep. 2013. <<http://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/flood-zones>>.
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *The Development of Logical Project Termini*. 5 Nov. 1993. Web. 11 Mar. 2010. <<http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/projdev/tdmtermini.asp>>. [FHWA 1993]
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Bent's Old Fort Access Road Draft Environmental Assessment and Section 4(F) Evaluation*. Washington, D.C.: Federal Highway Administration. 17 Sep. 2007. Print.
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Procedures for Abatement of Highway Traffic Noise and Construction Noise*. Washington, D.C.: GPO, 3 Jul. 2010. Web. <<http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-07-13/html/2010-15848.htm>>.
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Highway Traffic Noise: Analysis and Abatement Guidance*. Washington, D.C.: Federal Highway Administration. Dec. 2011. Web. http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/regulations_and_guidance/analysis_and_abatement_guidance/.
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Section 4(f) Policy Paper*. Washington, D.C.: Federal Highway Administration, 20 Jul. 2012. Print. [FHWA 2012a]
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Interim Guidance Update on Mobile Source Air Toxic Analysis in NEPA Documents*. Washington, D.C.: Federal Highway Administration, 6 Dec. 2012. Print. [FHWA 2012b]
- Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Environmental Review Toolkit*. Web. Nov. 2015. <http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/strmlng/safe_faq.asp#faq_1>. [FHWA 2015]
- Gates, T.K., and J. Labadie. *Description and Interpretation of Salinization in the Lower Arkansas River Valley, Colorado*. Reston, VA: United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2000. Print.
- Gates, T., L. Garcia, and J. Labadie. *Toward Optimal Water Management in Colorado's Lower Arkansas River Valley: Monitoring and Modeling to Enhance Agriculture and Environment*. Ft. Collins, CO: Colorado State University (CSU), June 2006. Web. May 2009. <http://digitool.library.colostate.edu/R/?func=dbin-jump-full&object_id=4997>.
- Hammerson, G.A. *Amphibians and Reptiles in Colorado*. 2nd ed. Boulder, CO: University Press of Colorado and Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW), 1999. Print.
- Historical Census Browser. *Agricultural Data from 1900 to 1974*. Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia Library. Web. Feb. 2007. <<http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/>>. [Historical Census Browser 2007a]
- Historical Census Browser. *Population Data*. Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia Library. Web. Feb. 2007. <<http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu/collections/stats/histcensus/>>. [Historical Census Browser 2007b]



- McLean, S. Colorado Division of Wildlife (CDOW). Consultation regarding riparian mapping data. April 28, 2006.
- Morgan, M. *Colorado's Earthquake and Fault Map*. Denver, CO: Colorado Geological Survey, 2007. Web. May 2010. <<http://geosurvey.state.co.us>>.
- Natural Diversity Information Source (NDIS). *Species and Habitat Information*. Denver, CO: CPW, 2007. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://ndis.nrel.colostate.edu/wildlife.asp>>.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). *Digital Soil Survey: Soil Data for Eastern Colorado*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.2. Lakewood, CO: Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS); 25 Jan. 2005. Print.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). *National Engineering Handbook: Chapter 7, Hydrologic Soil Groups*. Lakewood, CO: Natural Resources Conservation Service, May 2007. Web. May 2010. <<http://directives.sc.egov.usda.gov/OpenNonWebContent.aspx?content=17757.wba>>.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). *Official Soil Series Descriptions*. Lincoln, NE: National Resources Conservation Service. Web. May 2010. <<https://soilseries.sc.egov.usda.gov/osdname.asp>>.
- Natural Resources Conservation Service. *Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) Database*. Web. Jan. 2014. <<http://soildatamart.nrcs.usda.gov>>.
- National Center for Education Statistics (NCES). *Public School Districts: 2003-2004 School Year*. Web. 11 Oct. 2006. <<http://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/>>.
- National Environmental Policy Act/Clean Water Act Section 404 (NEPA/404) merger process and agreement for transportation projects in Colorado. 2005.
- National Park Service (NPS). *US 50 Tier 1 EIS National Park Service Consultation Meeting Minutes*. Denver, CO: Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Region 2, 15 Feb. 2008. Print.
- National Park Service (NPS). *General Information*. Web. 2009. <<http://www.nps.gov>>.
- National Research Council. National Cooperative Highway Research Program. *Research Results Digest 275: Application of European 2+1 Roadway Designs*. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press, 2003. Print.
- Otero County. Resolution 2005-010. 16 May 2005.
- Otero County Assessor. Property records for buildings within the boundaries of Fowler, Manzanola, Rocky Ford, Swink and La Junta that are 45 years of age or older. Otero County, CO: Otero County Assessor. File search completed November 2006.
- Ott-Jones, C. Park Superintendent, Bent's Old Fort National Historic Site (NHS). Consultation regarding routes used by visitors to access Bent's Old Fort National Historic Site. 18 Apr. 2007.



- Pallante, A. Colorado Office of Archaeology and Historic Preservation. Consultation regarding number of listed properties on the Colorado State Register of Historic Places. 11 Feb. 2009.
- Peters, T. District Ranger, Comanche National Grassland. Consultation regarding routes used by visitors to access the Comanche National Grassland. 20 Apr. 2007
- Programmatic Agreement among the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) regarding implementation of the U.S. Highway 50 Corridor East Project (US 50 Tier 1 Section 106 PA). June 25, 2007.
- Prowers County. Resolution 2005-11. 20 Jun. 2005.
- Prowers County. *Arkansas River Trails Plan*. 2006.
- Prowers County Assessor. Property records for buildings within the boundaries of Granada and Holly that are 45 years of age or older. Prowers County, CO: Prowers County Assessor. File search completed November 2006.
- PublicLibraries.com. *Public Libraries in Colorado*. Web. 30 Apr. 2007. <<http://www.publiclibraries.com/colorado.htm>>.
- Pueblo Area Council of Governments (PACOG). Resolution 2005-022. 30 Jun. 2005.
- Pueblo Area Council of Governments (PACOG). *2030 Comprehensive Plan*. Pueblo, CO: PACOG, 11 Jan. 2010. Print.
- Pueblo Area Council of Governments (PACOG). *2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan*. Pueblo, CO: PACOG, 2 Nov. 2015. Web. <<http://www.pacog.net/>> [PACOG 2015]
- Pueblo Chieftain*. "Agricultural Decline to Continue In Arkansas River Valley." 11 Mar. 2007. Web. 11 Mar. 2007. <<http://www.pueblochieftain.com/>>.
- Pueblo County Assessor. Property records for buildings within the boundaries of Pueblo that are 45 years of age or older. Pueblo County, CO: Pueblo County Assessor. File search completed November 2006.
- Rich, T.D., et al. *Partners in Flight: North American Landbird Conservation Plan*. Ithaca, NY: Cornell Lab of Ornithology, 2004. Print.
- Rowe, Robert. *Paleontological Technical Report: Front Range Pipeline Project, Spread 2, Lincoln, Crowley, Otero, Bent, Las Animas, and Baca Counties, Colorado*. Denver, CO: Atkins North America, Inc. 2012. Print.
- Southeastern Colorado Water Conservancy District (SECWCD). *Arkansas River Watershed Invasive Plant Plan: Why is Tamarisk a Problem?* 2008. Web. May 2010. <<http://arkwipp.org/why-problem.asp>>.
- Southern Delivery System (SDS). *Fact Sheet*. 24 Aug. 2009. Web. May 2010. <http://www.sdswater.org/docs/newsroom/related_docs/FactSheet_general_8-24-09.pdf>.



- Southwest Regional Gap Analysis Project (SWReGAP). *Land Cover Datasets*. 2006. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://fws-nmcfwru.nmsu.edu/swregap/>>.
- Sparks, R.A., D.J. Hanni, and M. McLachlan. *Section-Based Monitoring of Breeding Birds Within the Shortgrass Prairie Bird Conservation Region (BCR 18)*. Brighton, CO: Rocky Mountain Bird Observatory, 2005. Print.
- State Board of Stock Inspection Commissioners. *2009 Public Livestock Market List*. List made available by staff 23 Jan. 2009.
- Stein, T. "For Some, River Not Worth its Salt: Economically Slumping Towns on the Arkansas River are Faced with Treating the Tainted Water." *Denver Post*. 27 Feb. 2005. Print.
- Stoeser, D., G. Green, L. Morath, W. Heran, A. Wilson, D. Moore, and B. Van Gosen. *Preliminary Integrated Geologic Map Databases for the United States Central States: Montana, Wyoming, Colorado, New Mexico, Kansas, Oklahoma, Texas, Missouri, Arkansas, and Louisiana*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.2. Denver, CO: U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 2005. Web. May 2010. <<http://tin.er.usgs.gov/geology/state/state.php?state=CO>>.
- Stulp Farms. Carrying capacity of ranch lands for livestock grazing. Web. Feb. 2009. <<http://www.cminet.net/~stulp/>>.
- Swenka, David, PE, PTOE. *2008-2012 Crash Summary and 2011 AADTs and LOSS for US 50*. Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). Safety and Traffic Engineering Branch. Data emailed Feb. 2014. [Swenka 2014]
- The Nature Conservancy (TNC). *Conservation Easements: What are Conservation Easements?* Web. 10 May 2007. <<http://www.nature.org/aboutus/howwework/conservationmethods/privatelands/conservationeasements/about/art14925.html>>.
- Tomelleri, J.R. "Front Range Native Minnows: Lake Chub, Northern Redbelly Dace, Southern Redbelly Dace and Common Shiner." *Wildlife in Danger*. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://www.wildlife.state.co.us/NR/rdonlyres/DFBF3DEB-600A-4AF8-BCB6-65CO20449117/0/fronrange.pdf>>.
- Town of Fowler. Resolution 682-05. June 14, 2005.
- Town of Fowler. *2035 Comprehensive Plan*. February 2009.
- Town of Granada. Resolution 2-2005. July 13, 2005.
- Town of Holly. Resolution 2005-4. July 6, 2005.
- Town of Manzanola. Resolution 05-03. June 16, 2005.
- Town of Swink. Resolution 2005-7. June 13, 2005.
- Tranel, J. *Identification of Highest and Best Agricultural Use of Non-Urbanized Land in the Project Area*. Lafayette, CO: WYCO Associates, LLC. 24 Apr. 2008. Print. [Tranel 2008a]
- Tranel, J. *Enterprise Budget Information for Certain Groups of Crops Grown in the Lower Arkansas Valley*. Lafayette, CO: WYCO Associates, LLC. 13 Aug. 2008. Print. [Tranel 2008b]

- Transportation Research Board (TRB). 2003. Access Management Manual. TRIB Committee on Access Management. Washington, DC.
- Trucking Industry Mobility and Technology Coalition (TIMTC). *Green Trucks: The View from the Road*. Webinar presented on 11 Feb. 2010. Web. <<http://www.freightmobility.org>>.
- Tweto, O. *Geologic Map of Colorado*. Reston, VA: United States Geological Survey, 1979. Print.
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). *John Martin Reservoir Recreation Area Information*. Web. 12 Jan. 2010. <<http://www.spa.usace.army.mil/recreation/jm/index.htm>>.
- U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BOR). *Record of Decision for the Southern Delivery System Final Environmental Impact Statement*. Billings, MT: Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) Great Plains Region, 20 Mar. 2009. Web. May 2010. <<http://www.sdseis.com/> .html>.
- U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BOR). *Arkansas Valley Conduit and Long-Term Excess Capacity Master Contract, Final Environmental Impact Statement*. Billings, MT: Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) Great Plains Region, Aug. 2013. Web. <http://www.usbr.gov/avceis/avc_final_eis.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Aerials. USDA Aerial Photography Field Office. Flown June 2004.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). *2007 Census of Agriculture. Volume 1, U.S. Summary and State Reports*. Washington, D.C. 2007. Web. 24 Oct. 2013. <http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2007/Full_Report/>. [Agricultural Census 2007a]
- U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). *2007 Census of Agriculture. County Profiles for Pueblo, Otero, Bent, and Prowers Counties*. Washington, D.C. 2007. Web. 22 Oct. 2013. <http://www.agcensus.usda.gov/Publications/2007/Online_Highlights/County_Profiles/Colorado/>. [Agricultural Census 2007b]
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *1997 Economic Census*. Washington, D.C. 1997. Web. 27 Jul. 2009. <<http://www.census.gov/epcd/mwb97/us/us.html>>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *2000 Census*. Washington, D.C. 2000. Web. 12 Dec. 2006. <http://dola.colorado.gov/dlg/demog/pop_totals.html>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *State and County QuickFacts: 2000*. Web. Jul. 2007. <<http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/>>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *2005 Zip Code Business Patterns Data*. Washington, D.C. 2005. Web. 2007. <<http://www.censtats.census.gov/cbpnaic/cbpnaic.shtml>>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *2006 County Business Patterns Data*. Washington, D.C. 2006. Web. 28 Jul. 2009. <<http://www.census.gov/econ/cbp/index.html>>.



- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *State and County QuickFacts: 2006*. Web. Jul. 2009. <<http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/>>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *2010 Census*. Washington, D.C. 2010. Web. 30 Aug. 2013. <<http://www.census.gov/2010census/data/>>. [U.S. Census 2011a]
- U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics, and Statistics Administration. U.S. Census Bureau. *American Community Survey Data*. Web. 30 Aug. 2013. http://www.census.gov/acs/www/data_documentation/2010_release/. [ACS 2011b]
- U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). *Transportation Energy Data Book*. 28th ed. Oak Ridge, TN: U.S. Department of Energy (DOE), 2009. Print.
- U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). *2000 Federal Poverty Guidelines*. Washington, D.C. 2000. Web. Dec. 2006. <<http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty/00poverty.htm>>.
- U.S. Department of Transportation. "Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients' Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient Persons." *Federal Register* 70.239 (14 Dec. 2005): 74087-74100. Print. [USDOT 2005b].
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). "Approval and Promulgation of Air Quality Implementation Plans; CO; PM₁₀ Designation of Areas for Air Quality Planning Purposes, Lamar; State Implementation Plan Correction." *Federal Register* 70.233 (6 Dec. 2005): 72597-72598. Print.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). *AirData*. Web. 2007. <<http://www.epa.gov/air/data/geosel.html>>.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). *Region 8: Municipal Storm Water Permits*. 10 Mar. 2008. Web. 14 Apr. 2010. <<http://www.epa.gov/region8/water/stormwater/municipal.html>>.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). *Hazardous Waste Types*. Web. 4 Sep. 2009. <<http://www.epa.gov/waste/hazard/index.htm>>.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). *Water Quality Criteria: Basic Information*. Web. 13 Apr. 2010. <<http://www.epa.gov/waterscience/criteria/basic.htm>>.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Environmental Compliance History Online (ECHO). Web. 25 Oct. 2013. <http://echo.epa.gov/facility_search>.
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). *Questions and Answers Regarding the Status Review Finding for the Black-Tailed Prairie Dog*. 2009. Web. 25 Mar. 2014. <<http://www.fws.gov/mountain-prairie/species/mammals/btprairiedog/QandA12022009.pdf>>. [USFWS 2009]
- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). *Information for Planning and Conservation System, Official Species List*. Web. 24 Sep. 2015. <<http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac>>.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). *National Hydrography Dataset: Geographic Information System Hydrography Data for the Arkansas River Basin*. Reston, VA: U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). Web. Dec. 2007. <<http://nhd.usgs.gov/>>.

U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). *Major Divisions of Geologic Time: Major Chronostratigraphic and Geochronologic Units*. 27 Aug. 1999. Web. May 2010. <<http://pubs.usgs.gov/gip/geotime/divisions.html>>.

University of Colorado Museum of Natural History. *Generalized Fossil Locations Within the U.S. Highway 50 Corridor from Pueblo to the Colorado-Kansas State Line Recorded by the University of Colorado Museum of Natural History*. ESRI ArcGIS 9.2. Colorado Springs, CO: URS Corporation, 5 Mar. 2002. Print.

Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). *I-81 Corridor Improvement Study—Tier 1 Draft Environmental Impact Statement*. 2005. Web. <<http://www.virginiadot.org/projects/constSTAN-I-81-DEIS.asp>>. [VDOT 2005]

Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC). *Climate of Colorado Narrative and State Temperature and Precipitation Data*. 2006. Web. Jan. 2007. <<http://www/wrcc/dri.edu>>.

Williams, K. *NCHRP Highway Practice Synthesis 337: Cooperative Agreements for Corridor Management*. Washington D.C.: Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, 2004. Print.



This page left intentionally blank.